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MONTGOMERY COUNTY'S FIRST GARDEN APARTMENTS
by Mark Walston

Prior to the 1920's, Montgomery County was still largely rural and sparsely
developed. The land boom which occurred during the late nineteenth century had
tapered off, leaving in its wake a few beginnings of suburban communities, prin-
cipally those bordering on the District Line - Chevy Chase, Takoma Park, Silver

Editor's Note: Mark Walston, a long-time member of the Montgomery County His-
torical Society and formerly a volunteer worker in our library, is now Park
Histerian with the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission. This
story is excerpted from a study made for the Park and Planning Commission.
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Spring - and areas along the Baltimore and Chio Railroad line which provided a
commuter facility and hence encouraged development in a north-northwest direc-
tion from Silver Spring through Kensington and Garrett Park to Rockville. But
these communities were only small deviations from the dominant rural pattern.
In the first two decades of the twentieth century, their attractions had not
significantly increased the county's population, which had risen only slightly
from 30,451 in 1900 to 34,921 in 1920.

In contrast, during this period the population of the District of Columbia
was rising rapidly, especially between 1910 and 1920, the World War I years,
when the city grew by nearly a third. In response to the burgeoning popula-
tion, subdivisions and residential developments pushed northward out of the
central city toward Montgomery County, their directions dictated by the major
transportation lines, notably Seventh Street (Georgia Avenue), Wisconsin Ave-
nue, and the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad.

The increased demand for housing by this influx of population prompted
Washington builders and developers to eschew the earlier pattern of suburban
development, characterized by single-family dwellings set back on landscaped
lots, in favor of large block developments of attached, multi-family units.
Economy, higher densities, and more profit per square foot were their motiva-
tions. As housing stock, town houses and apartment buildings were nothing new
to the Washington area. Georgian-styled Wheat Row, constructed in Georgetown
in 1793, was one of Washington's first multi-family, row-house complexes. The
acceptance of apartment buildings as desirable housing was more gradual, but,
by the late nineteenth century, Washingtonians, perhaps looking toward the
fashionable city apartments in such European capitals as Paris, began filling
newly erected, luxury apartments. Meanwhile, at the other end of the
nineteenth-century social spectrum, the housing needs of the laboring classes
and the poor engendered the transformation of the larger single-family dwell-
ings vacated by the suburbanized rich into the city's first low-rent apartment
buildings. Thus, by the beginning of the building boom of the 1920's, multi-
family dwellings were an accepted part of the Washington housing scene.

When, in the early twentieth century, development neared the Montgomery
County Line, the architects and developers encountered situations differing
from those encountered in the central city. Primarily, building sites were no
longer bridled by the flat, rigid grid plans of the city street system. North-
westward to the fall line the landscape began to roll in hills and valleys,
sometimes gently, sometimes with steep descents into stream gorges. The older
inner-city designs of long rows of flat, connected buildings, their roof lines
at the same height, became impractical to build on the undulating ground, flat
grading being too costly a proposition. Consequently, the architects learned
to adapt their large complexes to the landscape, marching the segmented build-
ings down hillsides, turning and twisting the sections in conformance to ihe
land. Foxhall Village, on Reservoir Road, developed by Waverly Taylor between
1925 and 1930, with its English Village style half-timbered row houses adapted
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